
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

March 24, 2014 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Pastor John Turner, Shades Mountain Baptist Church 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements, Candidate and Guest Recognition 
6. Proclamation – Donate Life Month – April 2014 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports –  

a. Board of Education Announcement – John Henley 
9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III; Finance Director 
10. Approval of Minutes – March 10, 2014 (Work Session) and March 10, 2014 (Regular 

Meeting) 

Old Business 

11. Resolution Number 4562 - A Resolution Requesting Funding For Brand Extension 
Initiatives For The City Of Vestavia Hills    (public hearing) 

12. Resolution Number 4563 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Field Signage For Fields At Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex   (public hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 4564 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase A 
Monument Sign For Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex   (public hearing) 

New Business  

14. Resolution Number 4577 – A Resolution Establishing Iberia Bank As Depositor For 
Emergency Reserve Fund And Capital Projects Fund Accounts 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

15. Resolution Number 4568 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Abatement And 
Demolition Of Buildings For Construction Of A New City Hall And Public 
Safety/Municipal Court Complex  (Public Hearing) 



16. Ordinance Number 2485 - An Ordinance Establishing A Local Issuance Fee For Renewal 
Of Automobile Tags In Vestavia Hills, Alabama    (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Resolution Number 4569 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3700 Altadena Circle; Lot 8, 
Ridge Forest; Ralph and Alison McCall, Owners  (public hearing)  

18. Ordinance Number 2486 – Annexation – Overnight - 3700 Altadena Circle; Lot 8, Ridge 
Forest; Ralph and Alison McCall, Owners   (public hearing)  

19. Resolution Number 4570 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4668 Caldwell Mill Road; 
Layne and Amy Savoie, Owners   (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2487 – Annexation – Overnight – 4668 Caldwell Mill Road; Layne 
and Amy Savoie, Owners   (public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 4571 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2640 Dolly Ridge Road; 
Willard and Ruth Bowers, Owners   (public hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2488 – Annexation – Overnight – 2640 Dolly Ridge Road; Willard 
and Ruth Bowers, Owners   (public hearing) 

23. Resolution Number 4572 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3548 Valley Circle; Lot 12, 
Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition; Benjamin and Carol Byrket, Owners   (public 
hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 2489 – Annexation – Overnight - 3548 Valley Circle; Lot 12, Block 
3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition; Benjamin and Carol Byrket, Owners   (public 
hearing) 

25. Resolution Number 4573 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2760 Altadena Lake Drive; Lot 
3, Block 5, First Addition to Altadena Valley, Fifth Sector; Lynne R. Smitherman, 
Trustee, Owner  (public hearing) 

26. Ordinance Number 2490 – Annexation – Overnight – 2760 Altadena Lake Drive; Lot 3, 
Block 5, First Addition to Altadena Valley, Fifth Sector; Lynne R. Smitherman, Trustee, 
Owner (public hearing) 

27. Resolution Number 4574 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2568 Kenvil Circle; Lot 42, 
Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Tara Adams, Owner  (public hearing) 

28. Ordinance Number 2491 – Annexation – Overnight – 2568 Kenvil Circle; Lot 42, 
Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Tara Adams, Owner   (public hearing) 

29. Resolution Number 4575 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2400 Rocky Ridge Road; Lot 
105, Buckhead, 4th Sector; Michael and Donya Rumore, Owners   (public hearing) 

30. Ordinance Number 2492 – Annexation – Overnight – 2400 Rocky Ridge Road; Lot 105, 
Buckhead, 4th Sector; Michael and Donya Rumore, Owners   (public hearing) 



31. Resolution Number 4576 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2835 Acton Road; Lot 1, 
Adams Resurvey; Brantley Bowden, Owner   (public hearing) 

32. Ordinance Number 2493 – Annexation – Overnight - 2835 Acton Road; Lot 1, Adams 
Resurvey; Brantley Bowden, Owner   (public hearing) 

33. Citizens Comments  
34. Executive Session  
35. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 10, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in work session on this date at 3:30 PM 
following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.* 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem  
      George Pierce*** 

John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk** 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
       *left at 3:50 PM 
       **arrived at 4 PM 
       ***arrived at 4:20 PM 
 
 The Mayor called the work session to order. 
 
 Mr. Downes introduced representatives from Retail Strategies, the City’s 
consultants on economic development and led the presentation on the proposed changes 
in the City’s incentive policy.  Together they presented the amended policy and answered 
questions from the City Council. 
 
 Travis Tatum, Tatum Design, gave the Council an update regarding the proposed 
branding program for the City and the items on the agenda as a first read. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

Meeting adjourned at 4:50 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 10, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem  

George Pierce  
John Henley 

      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney  
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Conrad Garrison, City Engineer 
 
 Invocation was given by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• Steve Ammons declared that he is a candidate for Jefferson County Tax Collector 
and asked for support in the General Election. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes stated the City received a nice surprise the other day and asked Brian 
Davis to explain 

o Mr. Davis stated the City learned via a press release a grant has been 
offered through Macy’s and that any donation which is made at any 
Macy’s store will be matched dollar for dollar and given to the City for 
Park and Recreation usage. 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 2 
 

o Mr. Davis also recognized Mr. Kelly Garner who was in the audience.  
Mr. Garner was the good Samaritan resident that assisted stranded 
motorists during the recent snow event.  Mr. Garner was eventually 
injured and was missing for the entire night before being found the next 
morning in the snow.  Mr. Davis also introduced Mr. Garner’s sons, 
Mitchell and Tyler.  Both of these young men alerted officials when they 
realized their father was missing, kept the search going for their dad and 
assisted every way possible until he was located.  Both individuals 
deserved recognition for the quick and decisive actions they took to locate 
their father in the cold snowy weather. 

• Mr. Downes asked Chief St. John to brief the Council on E-9-1-1 funding. 
o Chief St. John gave an update on a request from the E-9-1-1 Board relative 

to escrowed funding.  He stated that he had discussed this matter with the 
Council at the last work session.  The Chief stated after studying the 
situation and the funding, he recommends that the City continue to escrow 
the funding until such time as it is needed for upgrades of capital. 

• Mr. Downes stated that new computer software is being implemented to monitor 
and track work assignments and problems. Beginning April 1, the action center 
will be kicked off and these assignments and problems can finally be monitored, 
tracked and recorded. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Henley stated that the Council will begin receiving applications on March 11, 
2014 for an upcoming vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Board of Education.  He 
stated that the deadline to submit this application is April 14 which will be 
followed by an interview and the new appointment will be announced on April 
28.  He invited interested individuals to prepare and file an application as soon as 
its open. 

• Mr. Henley reminded everyone of the upcoming Special Municipal Election for 
renewal of a School Tax on March 11, 2014.  Polling hours are 7 AM to 7 PM.   

• The Mayor announced that Unanimous Consent will be requested for Resolution 
Number 4566 tonight to authorize the establishment of an escrow account for the 
demolition of a structure in the City. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the February 20, 2014 (Meeting with the Mayor) and February 24, 
2014 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting of 

February 20, 2014 (Meeting with the Mayor) and February 24, 2014 
(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 3 
 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2482 
 
Ordinance Number 2482 – An Ordinance Granting A Conditional Use Approval 

For A Feline Veterinary Hospital   (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2482 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for conditional use approval for 
construction and operation of a two story building with a feline veterinarian practice 
within the building. 
 
 Jackie Holmes, DVM, explained that she currently shares a practice with another 
veterinarian in the Liberty Park area and wants a practice strictly for cats so there aren’t 
any dogs in the vicinity.  She stated that’s her preference for her practice and also to keep 
the felines calm and happy. 
 
 Discussion ensued relative to the size of the building, the level of development in 
the area, no elevators and capacity of felines anticipated at 23 to 25.  Ms. Leavings 
explained that the property is zoned B-3 and the reason for conditional use approval is 
that veterinary facilities generally have outdoor runs for canines.  This facility is being 
limited in this approval to felines only (except in cases of emergency) and no outdoor 
facilities will be allowed on premise. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Raymond Gotlieb, 3920 Briar Oak Drive, stated that he owns the Heights Village 
and explained that this property is located in a “gateway” to the City.  He stated that he 
doesn’t feel this development is in keeping with the Cahaba Heights Community Plan 
and that the City should hold the property for construction of an office building or a retail 
store.  He stated he feels the property is better suited for retain and if the feline facility is 
successful, she might utilize the entire building for her practice. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained that this property is zoned B-3 which is the least restrictive 
zoning classification in the City.  He stated that if an indoor feline veterinary facility 
cannot locate on the property, where can it go?  He explained Alabama law on zoning 
and indicated that if the Council denies the request, there needs to be a substantial reason 
for the denial. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 4 
 

 Jack Little, 1116 S. Shadesview Terrace, stated he is the listing agent for the 
property and that the property has been on the market since the existing building was 
destroyed by the April 2010 tornados.  This is the only significant proposal they have had 
come forward for the property because the property is narrow and contains an incline.   
 
 Trey Goldstein, Cotton Development, stated they did site a 1300 square foot 
office building on the property but parking left that tight.  There have been no prospects 
for retail. 
 
 Dr. Holmes indicated she would have a small amount of retail sales for flea 
medications, feline toys, etc. 
 
Roll call vote, as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4558 
 
Resolution Number 4558 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4425 - Sales 

Tax Incentive Program For The City Of Vestavia Hills 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4558 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution amends the current incentive program as 
discussed previously with the City Council.  He gave a brief background of the existing 
policy and the changes on the new one. 
 
 Heyward Hosch, Maynard Cooper and Gale, stated that he has reviewed the 
policy and finds no problems. 
 
 Mr. Boone concurred. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council on this matter, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 5 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4559 

 
Resolution Number 4559 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic 

Development Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And 
Winn-Dixie Montgomery, LLD 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4559 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution allows execution of an incentive 
agreement with Winn Dixie for a transformation of the existing store on Crosshaven.  He 
explained the terms of the agreement and the plans for the store renovation. 
 
 Mr. Hosch stated he has reviewed the agreement and finds no problems. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council on this matter, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4565 
 
Resolution Number 4565 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As 

Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4565 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution declares certain park bleachers and a truck 
as surplus and directs the sale and/or disposal of said property. 
 
There being no further discussion on the matter, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 

call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 6 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2483 
 
Ordinance Number 2483 - Declaring Real Property Located At 513 Montgomery 

Highway As Surplus And Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With CFA For Sale Of Said 
Property 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2483 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Ordinance declares the property here at City Hall as 
surplus and allows the execution of an agreement with CFA for due diligence toward the 
construction of a fast food restaurant. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained that the City has purchased property to be used as a new 
City Hall; has secured funding for construction of a new City Hall facility and is 
proceeding with designs and bids for construction of a new City Hall.  He stated he feels 
that the City has the full right to declare this property as surplus and to allow due 
diligence toward a purchase with another party. 
 
 There being no further discussion, the Mayor opened the floor for a public 
hearing. 
 
 Chris Freeman, 512 Eastwood Place, asked about the due diligence time and when 
a request for rezoning would occur. 
 
 Ms. Leavings explained the rezoning process and timeline once a request is 
obtained. 
 
 Mr. Freeman asked for direction on reviews of the designs, lighting, etc., and 
when adjacent property owners should review and comment on said designs. 
 
 Ms. Leavings stated a certain amount of the design would be available for the 
rezoning and he should participate as much as possible from the start.  The building and 
lighting, if approved, would also go through a DRB approval and all meetings are open to 
the public. 
 
There being no further discussion on the matter, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 

called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 7 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action of Resolution Number 4560 and Resolution Number 4561. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

of Resolution Number 4560 and Resolution Number 4561 was made by 
Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4560 
 
Resolution Number 4560 – A Resolution Declaring A Recent Snow Event As An 

Emergency And Authorizing The City Manager To Remit Towing 
Fees To Vestavia Tire Express For Towing Services During Said 
Event   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4560 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution was for towing services following the 
snow event at the last of January.  He explained this was needed in order to clear vehicles 
off of the City’s roadways to allow for access for emergency services.  He explained the 
amount needed to pay the towing fees and recommended approval. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council regarding this request, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4561 
 
Resolution Number 4561 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement With Walter Schoel Engineering Co., Inc. 
For CWSRF Funding In Fiscal Year 2014 For Little Shades 
Creek/Meadowlawn Project   (public hearing) 

 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 8 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4561 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution approves for some engineering work and 
completion of a grant application for a clean water grant for the Meadowlawn area.  He 
explained that a past grant had been denied by FEMA and this new funding was found 
that might help to buy out some of these properties.  He then explained the terms of the 
agreement. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council regarding this request, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
 Ms. Leavings indicated that an incorrect amount was given in the Resolution and 
that the agreement stated two fee amounts which should be added together for a total of 
$32,200.  She stated that the Resolution needed to be amended to reflect that amount. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4561 to reflect the correct total of 

$32,200 was by Mr. Henley and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote 
as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes    
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on March 
24, 2014 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4562 - A Resolution Requesting Funding For Brand 
Extension Initiatives For The City Of Vestavia Hills    (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4563 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Purchase Field Signage For Fields At Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex   (public 
hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4564 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Purchase A Monument Sign For Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex   (public 
hearing) 

 



City Council Minutes 
March 10, 2014, 

Page 9 
 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Second was by Mr. Pierce.  Meeting adjourned at 5:20 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 

                                     PROCLAMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS,  one of the most meaningful gifts that someone can bestow 
          upon one another is the gift of life; and 
 
WHEREAS,  approximately 28,951 Americans (392 Alabamians) received 
          a  life-saving  or  life-enhancing organ  transplant  in 
          2013; and 
 
WHEREAS,  a new patient is added to the  national waiting list for 
          an organ transplant every 18 minutes; and 
       
WHEREAS,  more than 122,000 men, women and  children are currently 
      on the  national waiting  list for organ transplants, of 
          which approximately 3,800 reside in Alabama; and 
 
WHEREAS,  286 Alabamians died in 2013 waiting  for an organ trans- 
          plant which did not come in time; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Alabama Organ  Center is the non-profit, independent 
          organ recovery organization dedicated to the recovery of 
          high-quality  organs  and  tissues  for  transplantation 
          therapy; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Vestavia  Hills,  Alabama  supports  the  Alabama  Organ 

Center’s life-saving mission; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Alberto  C. Zaragoza, Jr.  by virtue of the  au- 
          thority  vested in  me as  Mayor of the City  of Vestavia 
          Hills  in  the  State  of  Alabama,  do  hereby  proclaim 
          April 2014 as 

 
                                                  DONATE  LIFE  MONTH 
 
          to honor all who have given the gift of life, as we focus 
          our  efforts  on the  extreme need  for organ and  tissue 
          donors. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and 
caused the Seal of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama to be affixed this 
the 24th day of March, 
2014. 

 
 
 
                                   ___________________________ 
                                   Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
                                   Mayor 



Resolution Number 4562 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4562 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FUND 
BRAND EXTENSION INITIATIVES WITHIN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager, Mayor and Council recognize a need for “branding” for 

the City of Vestavia Hills in an effort to unite the City and the Vestavia Hills Chamber of 

Commerce in a creative and strategic brand extension to paint a picture of what exists within the 

community and what is to come; and 

 WHEREAS, the City joined with the Chamber to create a Committee to begin and 

oversee the branding activities of the City and the Committee has drafted a tentative outline of 

said brand extension initiatives, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4562 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council agree that branding serves a public purpose and 

agree that funding should be available for said outlined brand extension initiatives. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend an amount not to exceed $215,600 for 

brand extension initiatives as described in the attached outline; and 

2. Funding for said initiatives shall derive from the City’s General Fund; and 

3. Said initiatives and agreements are authorized by this Resolution Number 4562 as 

detailed in Exhibit A and the City Manager has authority to execute all actions necessary 

to proceed with said initiatives in an amount not to exceed $215,600; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4562 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4562 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 











RESOLUTION NUMBER 4563 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE SIGNAGE FOR FIELDS LOCATED AT SICARD HOLLOW 
ATHLETIC COMPLEX 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase signage for fields located at the 

Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex in an amount not to exceed $14,400; and 

2. Said funding for signage shall be derived from a donation to the City from the 

Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Foundation held in the Capital Projects Fund 20; 

and 

3. This Resolution Number 4563 shall be effective upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragzoa, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City of Vestavia Hills Public Services 
513 Montgomery Highway 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
205.978.0150 

 

Interoffice Memo 
 
March 5, 2014 
 
TO:    Jeff Downes 
  City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian C. Davis bcd 
  Public Services Director 
 
RE:  Field Signage at SHAC 
 
The Parks and Recreation Foundation has collected funding in exchange for 
naming rights at 3 of the 4 fields at Sicard Hollow.  We have received pricing for 
signage to identify these 3 fields.  The cost per field is estimated at $4,800 for a 
total cost of $14,400.  The funding will come out of the Park and Recreation 
Foundation donation, however it is a non-budgeted item, therefore it needs City 
Council approval. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Exhibit A - Resolution 4563



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4564 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE A MONUMENT ENTRY SIGN FOR SICARD HOLLOW 
ATHLETIC COMPLEX 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase a monument sign for Sicard 

Hollow Athletic Complex in an amount not to exceed $14,000; and 

2. Said funding for signage shall be derived from a donation to the City from the 

Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Foundation held in the Capital Projects Fund 20; 

and 

3. This Resolution Number 4564 shall be effective upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragzoa, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 







Resolution Number 4577  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4577 

 
 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE IBERIA BANK. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the Iberia Bank be, and hereby is, designated as the depository of the City 

of Vestavia Hills Emergency Reserve Fund and Capital Projects Reserve Fund Accounts, 

and that the officers and employees of said City named herein below are hereby 

authorized to endorse, in the name of the City, for the purpose of deposit and collection, 

in and with said bank, checks, drafts, notes and other like obligations issued and drawn to 

and owned by said City; and it is further resolved that endorsement for deposit and 

collection may be by the written or stamped endorsement of the City without designation 

of the party making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any two officers whether said checks are payable to cash, 

bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the order of any signing 

or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation officer, in either 

their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to the authority of 

said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and orders or the 

proceeds thereof;  

 



Resolution Number 4577  
Page 2 

  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Jeffrey Downes 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of City Manager, Mayor, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 

corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 



Resolution Number 4577  
Page 3 

  
holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4577 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of March 25, 2014 and shall remain in full force and effect until it shall 

have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal have 

been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4577  
Page 4 

  
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 24th day of March, 2014, and that such Resolution is of record in the 
Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



3/21/2014

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

B
B

&
T

B
B

VA
 / C

om
pass B

ank
B

ancorpSouth B
ank

C
adence B

ank
First C

om
m

ercial B
ank

IB
ER

IA
B

A
N

K
N

ational B
ank of C

om
m

erce
Pinnacle B

ank
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
M

oney M
arket

no quote
no quote

0.10%
no quote

no quote
0.10%

0.26%
no quote

3 m
onths

no quote
no quote

0.05%
no quote

no quote
0.15%

0.16%
no quote

6 m
onths

no quote
no quote

0.05%
no quote

no quote
0.30%

0.21%
no quote

8 m
onths

no quote
no quote

0.05%
no quote

no quote
n/a

0.21%
no quote

12 m
onths

no quote
no quote

0.05%
no quote

no quote
0.50%

0.26%
no quote

18 m
onths

no quote
no quote

0.07%
no quote

no quote
n/a

0.36%
no quote

24 m
onths

no quote
no quote

0.10%
no quote

no quote
0.75%

0.41%
no quote

C
ontact Persons

S
tephen V

ickery 445-2273
A

ndrea S
m

ith 297-1310
E

ric C
ates 437-2761

A
ndrew

 S
m

ith 327-3462
Jeff H

enderson 868-1133
C

ooper Lindsey 803-5818
Todd B

eard 313-2119
E

d D
avidson 978-7425

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
R

egions B
ank

R
enasant B

ank
ServisFirst B

ank
SouthC

ity B
ank

SouthPoint B
ank

Synovus Securities, Inc.
W

ells Fargo
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
A

PY
M

oney M
arket

0.10%
0.25%

no quote
no quote

no quote
n/a

no quote
3 m

onths
0.05%

0.10%
no quote

no quote
no quote

0.04%
no quote

6 m
onths

0.05%
0.15%

no quote
no quote

no quote
0.07%

no quote
8 m

onths
0.05%

n/a
no quote

no quote
no quote

0.08%
no quote

12 m
onths

0.05%
0.25%

no quote
no quote

no quote
0.10%

no quote
18 m

onths
0.05%

0.30%
no quote

no quote
no quote

0.19%
no quote

24 m
onths

0.05%
0.40%

no quote
no quote

no quote
0.31%

no quote
C

ontact Persons
D

avid G
erm

any 264-4093
Terri L. O

dum
 968-5632

B
art M

cB
ride 949-0308

S
cott M

athew
s 949-0316

S
tephen S

m
ith 503-5010

E
rik S

tahr 868-6468
E

llie S
ternberg  (256) 551-4126

N
ote:

S
ynovus quoted the follow

ing:
Treasury B

ills - 3,6,8,12 m
onths

Treasury N
otes - 18 and 24 m

onths

IN
VESTED

 FU
N

D
S

B
alance - January 31, 2014

Em
ergency R

eserve Fund
$8,467,377

Year-End Surplus 2013
$537,439

Em
ergency R

eserve Fund
$9,004,816

C
apital Projects R

eserve Fund
$6,457,635

TO
TA

L
$15,462,451

C
ITY O

F VESTA
VIA

 H
ILLS

B
A

N
K

 R
A

TE PR
O

PO
SA

LS

B
kP

roposalsA
P

repared by M
T3



Resolution Number 4568 
Page pg. 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4568 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR ABATEMENT AND 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A 
NEW CITY HALL AND PUBLIC SAFETY/MUNICIPAL COURT 
COMPLEX 

 
 WHEREAS, the BL Harbert International as Construction Managers for and on behalf of 

the City of Vestavia Hills invited pre-qualified bids for demolition and abatement of existing 

buildings for construction of a new City Hall complex; and 

 WHEREAS, pre-qualified bidders were invited to a mandatory pre-bid meeting held on 

March 11, 2014 at 2:00 PM on site; and 

WHEREAS, sealed bids were received on March 18, 2014 and read aloud publicly with 

the results tabulated and detailed in an official tabulation a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit 

A” attached and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4568; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-described tabulation lists the lowest bid was submitted by 

Tomlin Excavating Co., Inc., in the amount of $150,902 and following review, representatives 

from BL Harbert have recommended to the City Manager the acceptance of said bid; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid as recommended by the Construction Manager. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Tomlin Excavating Co., Inc., is hereby accepted for the 

base bid of $150,902; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 

all required agreements, contracts and documents in order to complete demolition as 

approved; and 



Resolution Number 4568 
Page pg. 2 

 
3. This Resolution Number 4568 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



C
ity of Vestavia H

ills

Page 1 of 1
3/19/2014

PR
O

JEC
T N

A
M

E:
D

A
T

E
:

Tuesday, M
arch 18, 2014

T
IM

E
:

2:00 PM
PR

O
JEC

T N
U

M
B

ER
:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:V

estavia H
ills C

ity H
all - C

ouncil C
ham

bers

Envelope Sealed

License No. on 
Envelope
Signed Notes on 
Envelope

Bid Signed

Bid Security

Attachment A
Stated Allowances 
and Unit Prices

 1 Addenda 
Acknowledged

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
G

ranite R
E, Inc

$216,407.00

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
FC

C
I Insurance 

C
om

pany
$193,000.00

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
Travelers C

asualty and 
Surety

$233,150.00

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
Lexon Insurance C

o.
$183,500.00

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
A

m
erican Southern 

Insurance C
o.

$150,902.00

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
Travelers C

asualty and 
Surety

$177,399.00

I certify that the above is a true and correct tabulation of bids received and opened for the project specified above.

V
estavia H

ills C
ity H

all - B
P1 D

em
olition and A

batem
ent

D
.H

. G
riffin W

recking C
o., Inc

508 M
ineral Trace

H
oover, A

L  35244

Surety

A
labam

a Environm
ental, Inc.                             

7300 U
niversity B

lvd E                                                 
C

ottondale, A
L  35453

B
ritt D

em
olition &

 R
ecycling, Inc.                     

8861 H
ighw

ay 31                                                 
H

anceville, A
L 35077

B
ase B

id
R

em
arks

V
irginia W

recking C
o., Inc                                       

10430 C
ounty R

oad 64                                            
D

aphne, A
L  36526

M
eredith Environm

ental, Inc.
2301 24th A

ve N
o.

B
irm

ingham
, A

L  35234

B
.L. H

arbert International, LLC
 as C

onstruction M
anager

Stephen A
llen, Principal A

rchitect
W

illiam
s B

lackstock A
rchitects

B
idders

C
harlie V

ick, D
irector of Preconstruction

M
U

ST
 R

E
JE

C
T

Tom
lin Excavating C

o., Inc.                                      
625 Springdale R

oad                                                
Tarrant, A

L  35217

M
A

Y
 R

E
JE

C
T

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4568



Ordinance Number 2485 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2485 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A LOCAL CONVENIENCE 
ISSUANCE FEE FOR RENEWAL OF AUTOMOBILE TAGS IN 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 WHEREAS, Act 2012-196 of the 2012 Regular Legislative Session of the Alabama 

Legislature was enacted to authorize municipalities in Jefferson County to designate a city 

license issuing official to process the renewal of motor vehicle license plates in the City; to 

provide for legislative findings; and to provide for bonding and audits; and 

 WHEREAS, Act 2014-7 of the 2014 Regular Legislative Session of the Alabama 

Legislature was enacted amending Act 2012-196 authorizing the designated city officers or 

employees of cities to issue motor vehicle registrations; to specify that issuance would not be 

authorized when a vehicle has not been previously registered in this state by or in the name of the 

current vehicle owner; to provide for a city issuance fee; and to provide for the distribution of the 

proceeds; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia has taken all steps necessary pursuant to said Act 

2012-196 and Act 2014-7 to begin issuance of car tags and has recommended a local 

convenience issuance fee in an amount of five dollars and no cents ($5.00) to be established to 

allow for convenient renewal of registrations for residents of the City which will be utilized for 

the operation of the city license plate issuing official’s office to provide said convenience; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel is it in the best public interest to establish 

said local issuance fee pursuant to Act 2014-7. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. A local convenience issuance fee in the amount of $5.00 shall become due and payable at 

the same time the state registration fee becomes due for any vehicle registration issued.  

The annual additional local fee shall not be collected more than once per vehicle during a 

registration year; and 

2. Said fee shall be deposited into the general fund of the City and shall be used for the 

operation of the City license plate issuing official’s office; and 

3. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 

invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 



Ordinance Number 2485 
Page 2 

remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding; and 

4. This Ordinance Number 2485 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2485 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 24th 
day of March, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day of 
______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4569 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4569 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 3, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 



Resolution Number 4569 
Page 2 

 
and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4569 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3700 Altadena Circle 
Lot 8, Ridge Forest 

Ralph and Alison McCall, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4569 
Page 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014    C Brady











Ordinance Number 2486 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2486 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Ralph and Alison McCall dated 

February 3, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 

3700 Altadena Circle 
Lot 8, Ridge Forest 

Ralph and Alison McCall 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 



Ordinance Number 2486 
Page 2 

 
Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2486 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2486 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4570 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4570 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated January 8, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4570 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4570 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4668 Caldwell Mill Road 
See Attached “Exhibit A” for Legal Description 

Layne and Amy Savoie, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
4668 
 
More
 

 

Calwell Mi

e particularly

ll Road 

y described a

E

as follows: 

Exhibit A 

Resolutioon Number 457
Page

70 
e 3 

 



Resolution Number 4570 
Page 4 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady













Ordinance Number 2487 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2487 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Layne and Amy Savoie dated 

January 8, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

4668 Caldwell Mill Road 
See Attached Exhibit A for Legal Description 

Layne and Amy Savoie 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2487 
Page 2 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2487 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



 

 
4668 
 
More
 
 
 

Calwell Mi

e particularly

ll Road 

y described a

E

as follows: 

Exhibit A 

Ordinancce Number 248
Page

87 
e 3 

 



 
 

Ordinancce Number 248
Page

87 
e 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 4571 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4571 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 6, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4571 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4571 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2640 Dolly Ridge Road 
See Attached Exhibit A for Legal Description 

Willard and Ruth Bowers, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 

EExhibit A 

Resolutioon Number 457
Page

71 
e 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4571 
Page 4 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2488 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2488 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Willard and Ruth Bowers dated 

February 6, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2640 Dolly Ridge Road 

See Attached Exhibit A for Legal Description 
Willard and Ruth Bowers 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2488 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2488 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EExhibit A 

Ordinancce Number 248
Page

88 
e 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2488 
Page 4 

 
 

 



Resolution Number 4572 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4572 
 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 9, 2013, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4572 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4572 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3548 Valley Circle 
Lot 12, Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

Benjamin and Carol Byrket, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4572 
Page 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady













Ordinance Number 2489 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2489 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Benjamin and Carol Byrket 

dated December 9, 2013, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
3548 Valley Circle 

Lot 12, Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 
Benjamin and Carol Byrket 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2489 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2489 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2489 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4573 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4573 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated September 16, 2013, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4573 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4573 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2760 Altadena Lake Drive 
Lot 3, Block 5, First Addition to Altadena Valley, Fifth Sector 

Lynne R. Smitherman, Trustee, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4573 
Page 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady













Ordinance Number 2490 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2490 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by  dated September 16, 2013, that 

the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2760 Altadena Lake Drive 

Lot 3, Block 5, First Addition to Altadena Valley, Fifth Sector 
Lynne R. Smitherman, Trustee, Owner 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 



Ordinance Number 2490 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2490 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2490 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4574 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4574 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated June 14, 2013, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4574 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4574 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2468 Kenvil Circle 
Lot 42, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

Tara Adams, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4574 
Page 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady











Ordinance Number 2491 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2491 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Tara Adams dated June 14, 

2013, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2468 Kenvil Circle 

Lot 42, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 
Tara Adams 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 



Ordinance Number 2491 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2491 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2491 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4575 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4575 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated January 27, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4575 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4575 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2400 Rocky Ridge Road 
Lot 105, Buckhead, 4th Secto 

Michael and Donya Rumore, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4575 
Page 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady















Ordinance Number 2492 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2492 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Michael and Donya Rumore 

dated January 27, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2400 Rocky Ridge Road 

Lot 105, Buckhead, 4th Secto 
Michael and Donya Rumore, Owners 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2492 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2492 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2492 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4576 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4576 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated January 18, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of April, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of April, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of July, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4576 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4576 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2835 Acton Road 
Lot 1, Adams Resurvey 

Brantley P. Bowden, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4576 
Page 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/14

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady















Ordinance Number 2493 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2493 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Brantley P. Bowden dated 

January 18, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2835 Acton Road 

Lot 1, Adams Resurvey 
Brantley P. Bowden, Owner 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2493 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of April, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2493 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of April, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2493 
Page 3 

 

 


	2014_0324CC_A
	2014_0310CC_WS
	2014_0310CC_M
	Proclamation donate life
	Resolution 4562
	Resolution 4563
	Resolution 4564
	Resolution 4577
	Resolution 4568
	Ordinance 2485
	Resolution 4569
	Ordinance 2486
	Resolution 4570
	Ordinance 2487
	Resolution 4571
	Ordinance 2488
	Resolution 4572
	Ordinance 2489
	Resolution 4573
	Ordinance 2490
	Resolution 4574
	Ordinance 2491
	Resolution 4575
	Ordinance 2492
	Resolution 4576
	Ordinance 2493



